RENTAL OF AUDIO, LIGHTING, STAGING AND VIDEO
DISPLAY PACKAGES DURING THE
ANNUAL NEW YORK STATE FAIR
IFB #0241
Addendum 1
Questions and Answers
Issued December 18, 2020
*Please note that the questions that follow are taken verbatim from the emails received by
the Department without editing.
1. We are bidding the video packages for the New York State Fair and have a question
regarding "LED Video - Packages 3 and 6". We want to confirm the screen dimensions of 6’x9’
and resolution of 2880x1080, are those values correct?
No. The resolution should be 1152 x 640. See “Addendum 2 - Amendment” and revised
Attachment 1 – Bid Form.
2. Could you supply financial information for the same contract from 2019 through freedom of
information?
See Estimated Budget and Bid Form attached for the 2019 contract (Contract
#C300518). Please note that this contract was terminated in August 2020 and the scope
of work and Bid Form differs in the current solicitation.
3. In quoting & possibly receiving contract for 2021 for IFB #0241, which is a significant
commitment, what is the NYS policy for honoring the contract should the event need to be
canceled like in 2020?
In the event that the 2021 State Fair is not held AGM would seek to extend the contract
for one additional year.
4. Are we able to submit clarifying comments with our bid with respect to substitutions within
the bid document or as an addendum or, no comments permitted?
Per Attachment 1 of the IFB, “Enter "or equal" or substitute items to be offered in the
highlighted orange fields ONLY and provide supporting documentation with your bid
submission. AGM’s decision as to acceptance of “or equal” or substitute items shall be
final.”
5. Can you provide information per stage as to how far from the edge of the stage it is for power
or a diagram (preferred) showing power location per stage?

•

Chevy Court: Power is in backstage with Cam-Lock (non-transformer) 600 amp
plus additional Camlock (transformer power for sound) 200 amp. Along
backstage wall is 110 volt outlets. There is a 200 amp camlock disconnect for
video production. There are also three (3), 50 amp tour bus connections on the
east side of the Chevy Court building. All power outlets are located within 100
feet from the edge of the stage.

•

Experience Stage: There is a 400 amp generator for all power provided by the Fair.
CamLock leads are ran to the back of stage. All power outlets are located within
50 feet from the edge of the stage.

•

Talent Showcase Stage: There is a 100 amp Camlock Disconnect. There are also
110 volt outlets on North, East and West side of stage for stage equipment. All
power outlets are located within 50 feet from the edge of the stage.

•

Pan African Village Stage: There is a 200 amp camlock connection at very back of
stage for panel and operation provided by sound/audio company. All power
outlets are located within 50 feet from the edge of the stage.

•

Miscellaneous Stages: All other miscellaneous stages have 110 volt power
outlets within fifty (50) feet from the edge of the stage.

6. Can you clarify per stage what the power source is and what connectors each may
have? [lugs, cam-loks, or other]
See response to question 5.
7. To the extent there is a power service without connectors and just lugs, does the crew we
provide need to handle the electrical connections or does a site electrician do this?
AGM electricians will handle the electrical connections.
8. Regarding the Free-Speak intercom, please clarify if it is 5 total stations. It looks like the top
line shows 5 stations and the subsequent lines define the components of the system however,
to be clear please provide further clarification.
See “Addendum 2 - Amendment” and revised Attachment 1 – Bid Form.
9. It is noted in the specifications that two follow-spot operators are provided by the
contractor. Where do the other follow-spot operators come from for the other 2 long throw
follow-spots on the main stage and other stages? Is this something taken care of by AGM if
operators are needed for the additional spotlights?
AGM will provide follow-spot operators for additional spotlights if needed.
10. Barricade is specified as 6 x 10' sections. Is a drawing available to show location and
configuration?
The barricade is installed parallel to the stages approximately six (6) feet in front of them.

11. For cable running from main stage to the scaffold tower for Front of House control/spots, is
there an open conduit, or a covered duct of some sort with a cover to safely allow the cabling to
pass through the audience? If not, how is the cable protected? What is the distance from
stage edge (permanent stage) to the tower?
•

Audio Wire: Approximately 150 feet from stage edge to the tower. The wires are
run overhead on a guidewire from the east side of the stage to the tower.

•

Lighting Wire: Approximately 150 feet from the stage edge to the tower. This is
installed overhead on a guidewire from the west side of the stage to the tower.

•

Other: There is 100 amp power (non-Transformer) installed in underground
conduit to a pedestal located behind the tower.

12.Is there a forklift provided on site for assistance with truck unloading and for safely getting
spotlights up on the audience tower? If no operator, is the crew provided by us able to
operate?
No. The Contractor must provide the forklift(s) needed for the “delivery, set-up, tear
down and pick-up” of all equipment outlined in this IFB. Per Section 2.2.B of the IFB,
“the Contractor must provide all materials and equipment necessary to safely stack,
support, suspend, rig, fly, and place all contractor supplied lighting equipment to the
satisfaction of the New York State Fair.”
13. For the stage extension for the main stage, is there a photo available of the downstage
(front) edge of the stage in order to see what the condition is of the front edge and if any safety
hazard may exist [gap, curve, deviation, or imperfection(s)] or, if a covering of some type is
needed such as marley type floor material?
See photos attached.
14. For the audio console, there are many line items for one (1) console all of which make up
one older series console which was phased out starting in 2006. This is public
information. Does each line item need a price or can we price the console as one line item as it
essentially is "one box" particularly if we are quoting a current model alternative that is one
"box" and a rack?
Please see the instructions on Attachment 1 – Bid Form, Instruction tab. Bidders must
provide a price for each audio package for each stage in the highlighted green fields
located at the top of the excel spreadsheet on Attachment 1, Lot 1 – Audio tab. The
pricing for each audio package listed on Attachment 1, Lot 1 – Audio tab, must include all
of the items listed in each package “or-equal” or substitute items.
Per Attachment 1 of the IFB, “Or-Equal" or Substitute Items: Whenever materials or
equipment are specified or described by using the name of a proprietary item or the
name of a particular supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type,
function, quality, and performance criteria required. Materials or equipment of other
suppliers may be accepted by AGM if sufficient information is submitted by Contractor to
allow AGM to determine that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal
to that named. The procedure for review by AGM will include the following as
supplemented in the Contract Documents. Requests for review of "or equal" or

substitute items will not be accepted by AGM from anyone other than Contractor. If
Contractor wishes to furnish or use an "or equal" or substitute item of material or
equipment, Contractor shall make written application to AGM for acceptance thereof,
certifying that the proposed "or equal" or substitute shall be similar and of equal
substance and quality to that specified and be suited to the same use and function as
that specified. Requests for review of “or equal” or substitute items shall include
appropriate catalog excerpts, descriptive literature, specifications and test data, etc.
Enter "or equal" or substitute items to be offered in the highlighted orange fields ONLY
and provide supporting documentation with your bid submission. AGM’s decision as to
acceptance of “or equal” or substitute items shall be final.”
See also responses to questions 4 and 15.
15. The wireless mic's specified use a radio frequency that has been discontinued. Do we
need to note that what we provide would be a sub or just that it would be a current/supported
model?
Per Attachment 1 of the IFB, "Or-Equal" or Substitute Items: Whenever materials or
equipment are specified or described by using the name of a proprietary item or the
name of a particular supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type,
function, quality, and performance criteria required. Materials or equipment of other
suppliers may be accepted by AGM if sufficient information is submitted by Contractor to
allow AGM to determine that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal
to that named. The procedure for review by AGM will include the following as
supplemented in the Contract Documents. Requests for review of "or equal" or
substitute items will not be accepted by AGM from anyone other than Contractor. If
Contractor wishes to furnish or use an "or equal" or substitute item of material or
equipment, Contractor shall make written application to AGM for acceptance thereof,
certifying that the proposed "or equal" or substitute shall be similar and of equal
substance and quality to that specified and be suited to the same use and function as
that specified. Requests for review of “or equal” or substitute items shall include
appropriate catalog excerpts, descriptive literature, specifications and test data, etc.
Enter "or equal" or substitute items to be offered in the highlighted orange fields ONLY
and provide supporting documentation with your bid submission. AGM’s decision as to
acceptance of “or equal” or substitute items shall be final.”
See also responses to questions 4 and 14.
16. For the Woodcarver stage it shows one speaker being required but nothing else. Does
someone else provide a microphone or other source?
AGM provides the microphone.
17. Can you advise what the "pixel pitch" is of the LED screen used previously? Seems like it
might be 8mm but want to be sure.
4 mm.
18. As this is a State contract, is prevailing wage in effect for this project or any other mandated
wage structures?

No.
19. Is there a requirement to use IATSE (Union) labor on site for additional labor needed to
load in and out? If not, is there a labor contractor typically used by anyone involved with
working with the lighting/sound, etc. that has been approved in the past as a
subcontractor? Does outside labor sourced locally need to be included as a subcontractor?
Please see “Addendum 2- Amendment” for subcontracting requirements. Any labor
provided that is not a direct employee of the Contractor must be included and approved
as a subcontractor. Contractor may use any subcontractors approved by the
Department.
20. For the audio packages, it is specified that audio engineers are required. Typically, the
audio engineers are responsible for controlling the audio and mixing. System technicians are
responsible for making everything work and stay working. Can this be clarified as to the
requirement? When both technicians are operating the show, this does not allow for a third
person to address troubleshooting or to work with preparing other artists (if any) that are getting
ready.
Per Section 2.2.A of the IFB, “the Contractor shall provide qualified technicians and/or
engineers on-site to operate the audio equipment”. The Contractor may use either
technicians or engineers to operate the audio equipment.
21. Who sets up all of the band equipment and removes it and is there any request for
involvement in this by the team we propose to provide?
AGM will provide the labor for the set up and removal of the band equipment.
22. Who sets up the stage risers daily (it is generally a two person job and who moves them if
and when needed during the use by different artists performing?
Contractor will be responsible for the delivery and initial set up of the stage risers. AGM
will be responsible for moving the risers when needed for use by different artists
performing daily.
23. Can you define what the "overage" line items mean and what these are intended for?
Per Attachment 1 of the IFB, “Bidders must provide an Overage Bid for each LED Video
Package. The Overage Bid for each LED Video Package shall be for up to one additional
package ordered. Bidder will be notified on or before July 1st each year if AGM will
require any Overage LED Video packages.” The “Overage Bid” is the cost of one
additional LED Video Package for each of the LED Video Packages listed (i.e. cost for the
2nd package ordered if needed).
24. There is no power distribution or rigging shown for the LED screens. Is it intended for the
LED screens to mount on the scaffolding? If so, is it permissible for us to suspend the LED
screens if engineer approved?
Yes, it is intended for the LED screens to mount on the scaffolding. Yes, it is permissible
to suspend the LED screens with approved engineer drawings.

25. The specifications note that video footage from other locations will at times be shown on the
mainstage screens. Is there cabling infrastructure on site that transmits signal from these other
locations to the mainstage? If not, how has signal gotten to the mainstage screens in real
time? If not real time, does someone record the other stages and they bring the content to the
mainstage to display it?
Yes, there is cabling infrastructure onsite. AGM is responsible for installing and/or
maintaining the cabling infrastructure.
26. The part of the spec for the 48 PAR64 1000 watt lighting fixtures both upstage and 48 more
downstage is an out of date lighting fixture replaced almost completely by multi-color changing
LED lighting fixtures. Can whomever is responsible for specifying the number of lighting fixtures
comment on whether or not 48 in each location can be replaced by a lesser number of LED
fixtures that also offer an approximately 85% reduction in power?
See responses to questions 4, 14 and 15.
27. For the MAC2000 washes which have not been made in approximately ten years ago and
are no longer manufacturer supported we will offer an option. As there are several possible
options, all of which use 85% or so less power, is it permissible to list the option that would be
the lowest cost and to then list other options that would likely increase the cost somewhat, but
offer more features?
No, listing different pricing options is not acceptable. The price quoted on the Bid Form
must include the price of the “or-equal” or substitute item offered. See responses to
questions 4, 14 and 15.
28. Is there a scaled topographic plan available showing all stage areas on site available?
No.
29. In the event of a need for technicians (lighting, sound, LED, staging) to be on site before or
after the set hours, is overtime billing for labor the normal practice? If not, how is this time
usage addressed in terms of compensation for the people working?
No, AGM will not need technicians onsite beyond the set hours specified in the IFB.
30. In the event that an artist brings certain of its own audio and/or lighting equipment, is the
artist responsible for all of its own labor for all of the handling, setup, operation, removal of its
equipment?
If an artist brings their own equipment, AGM is responsible for the labor for the handling,
set up, operation or removal of the equipment.
31. Regarding the 18 dates specified, to be clear, is this 18 show dates plus two or more days
on site for set up plus one or more removal dates?
The 2021 State Fair is anticipated to be 18 days. Each Lot has specific deadlines for set
up and removal which can be found under the Scope of Work in Section 2.2 of the IFB.
32. If an artist cancels for any particular reason once the equipment and personnel is on site is
there any effect on the production services contract?

No.
33. With regards to the LED quote, can you please detail better what you're looking for in the
"overage" bid section?
See response to question 23.
34. With regards to the production trailers requested in the LED bid section, do these need to be
trailers or will production fly pack racks built at FOH be sufficient?
Per Attachment 1 of the IFB they must be trailers.
35. Will there be forklifts and machines on site to unload and load delivery trucks provided by
AGM?
No. See response to question 12.
36. Will there be on-site per stage office areas provided?
No.
37. Who is handling on-site power requirements and where do we submit those needs?
AGM is handling the onsite power requirements. Per Section 2.3 of the IFB, AGM will
provide a Production Manager to work directly with the selected Contractor on all
aspects of the Agreement.

Appendix B - Budget (Estimated)

Estimated $122, 000 each year as follows:
•
•
•

Audio
Lighting
Staging

$59,000
$26,000
$37,000*

*Estimate includes pricing for Option 1 for the Experience Stage for budgetary
purposes only. AGM reserves the right to order Option 1 or Option 2. Contractor
will only be paid for the actual stage ordered in accordance with the Bid Form.
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